IVINS CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES May 3, 2016 435-628-0606

1) WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER

CHAIRMAN AND COMMISSIONERS: The meeting was called to order at 05:30 p.m. All present included Commissioner Adel Murphy, Commissioner Lance Anderson, Commissioner Mike Scott, Commissioner Bryan Pack, and Chairman Jeff Loris.

Staff Attending: Dale Coulam-City Manager/Attorney, Sharon Allen-Deputy City Recorder. **Audience Attending:** Ronald Barden, Claudette Larsen, Jon Graf, Kathy Barth, as well as others who did not sign in.

- A. Acknowledgement of Quorum
- B. Flag Salute--Commissioner Mike Scott
- C. Invocation--Commissioner Adel Murphy
- D. Disclosures--None.
- 2) **REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS**
- A. <u>Concept Plan for Shadow Canyon Phase 3, located at approximately 500 S Main Street.</u> <u>Applicant-Gary Nelson. Owner-Saddleback Land Development Inc.</u>

Dale Coulam stated that this subdivision consists of 22 lots on 6.77 acres. It is zoned R-1-10 and is a SEO subdivision. The original final plat for Phase 3 was not recorded within the time allowed and has expired. The application is complete. TRC has reviewed this and the application is complete. This is just a report so no action needs to be taken, but this subdivision is again moving forward to completion. After City Council meeting, it will move towards preliminary plan approval. **Chairman Jeff Loris** stated that Phase 1 and 2 are recorded as Shadow Canyons. This subdivision says Shadow Canyon. Most building envelopes are under 8000 square feet. He inquired if the SEO allowed that? **Dale Coulam** stated that Kevin Rudd had reviewed this and is well aware of the open space requirement. This is consistent with the Phase 3 that was previously approved but never recorded.

- 3) BUSINESS LICENSES -None
- 4) PUBLIC HEARING AND ACTION ITEMS
- A. <u>Public Hearing on a Proposed Amendment to Class IV Conditional Use Permit for</u> <u>Student Housing Associated with Rocky Vista University, located on the north side of</u> <u>Center Street from 300 E to 400 E. Rocky Vista University/Tim Anderson-Applicant.</u>

Dale Coulam presented a report on this last meeting. He showed the map of Phase 1 of the proposed RVU housing. Phase 2 is the other two student housing buildings, if needed, and Phase 3 would be the commercial along the parkway. The detention basin is smaller since they are putting another one in the upper 10 acres. This is an application to amend their CUP. The original CUP allowed the medical school and the clinic only but a concept master plan showing the planned student housing was also approved at that time. They moved them South from where they were depicted originally and the buildings are no longer just long, straight structures. The student housing buildings are all three story buildings, 35 feet high. The AC condensers will be located on the roof and the screen parapet will take it over the 35 feet height limit which will require a special exception from the Council. All sides of the building will have varied windows

pop-outs and the ends have an architectural feature to tie in with the University. The roof has offsets where the stairs are located. The rooftop screening will also provide an off-set. TRC reviewed this plan and feels it complies with the design requirements and recommends approval, conditioned on the Council approving the special height exception. Any motion made will need to include that. The units are centered in each of the buildings and the parapets will give relief to the eye from the side. It won't have just a straight roof line. **Commissioner Bryan Pack** inquired about the clubhouse. **Dale Coulam** stated there will be a clubhouse done with a pool as part of Phase 1. He also pointed out the fire access staging areas and noted that the applicant had added fire hydrants at the City's request. Randy Hancey is satisfied with those staging areas.

Commissioner Lance Anderson inquired how long the buildings are. Dale Coulam stated he was not sure of the exact dimensions looking at the attachments included with the agenda. There is no problem with the 15 degree view angle, even with the mechanical equipment. He showed a picture of the materials the applicant would like to use. Only part of the parking will be installed during Phase 1. They have a lease agreement with the University to use the medical school parking and walk to the student housing. Commissioner Lance Anderson inquired if student housing was owned by the University? Dale Coulam stated it is owned by a separate entity but related and, the approved CUP makes this part of the educational facility. **Commissioner Lance** Anderson stated he is having heartburn over the student housing. Robert's (Ence) apartments took months to design and go through, and we went through this quickly and approved instantly. Dale Coulam explained that the design requirements are now in place and the TRC felt it does meet those requirements. Commissioner Lance Anderson stated if you look at their conceptual drawings they look just like billboards. It does meet the viewshed though. Dale Coulam stated yes and there will also be commercial in front of it. Commissioner Lance Anderson inquired if we can require them to not have a white roof? Dale Coulam stated he wasn't sure what had been decided about roof color since Kevin Rudd had those conversations with the architect. However, we can govern the aesthetics of these buildings much more so than the Vista Charter School. Chairman Jeff Loris opened the Public Hearing. Hearing no comments, Chairman Jeff Loris closed the Public Hearing.

B. Discuss and consider approval on a Proposed Amendment to Class IV Conditional Use Permit for Student Housing Associated with Rocky Vista University, located on the north side of Center Street from 300 E to 400 E. Rocky Vista University/Tim Anderson-Applicant.

Dale Coulam stated that Rocky Vista University has now delivered the 100% design construction drawings. He suggested the Planning Commission continue this approval until next meeting so Kevin Rudd can review the plans and update the proposed amendment.

MOTION: Commissioner Adel Murphy moved to continue B. Discuss and consider approval on a Proposed Amendment to Class IV Conditional Use Permit for Student Housing Associated with Rocky Vista University, located on the north side of Center Street from 300 E to 400 E. Rocky Vista University/Tim Anderson-Applicant. SECOND: Commissioner Bryan Pack

VOTE: The motion carried.

Commissioner Adel Murphy	AYE
Commissioner Lance Anderson	AYE
Commissioner Mike Scott	AYE
Commissioner Bryan Pack	AYE
Chairman Jeff Loris	AYE

5) DISCUSSION AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS

A. <u>Discuss proposed amendments to Ivins City Zoning Ordinance for Recreational Vehicle</u> <u>Resort.</u>

Commissioner Mike Scott stated they can go through summary notes and then asked about items that weren't covered in ordinance. Dale Coulam stated that the definitions need to be completed but suggested they review the changes he had made since last meeting and then talk about density. His changes that were made was that a resort manager or employee, must be on duty at all times. The wall must be masonry or stucco. There needs to be a minimum buffer of 30 feet or cabin sites can be 20 feet if they are located along boundaries or abutting private property. Parking spaces may be within the site or added to the minimum dimensions for the RV pad. He noted that the Virgin ordinance also had a provision for guest parking. They had a ratio of one parking place per 10 sites scattered throughout their park. Regarding how long an RV can be there with the wheels off, if repairs cannot be completed within 24 hours, the RV must be removed from the RV resort. Pets, dogs or cats traveling with guests shall be kept inside the RV overnight and if outside during the day they must be on a tether or leash. Applicant requested that they be allowed 6 equestrian RV sites. Dale Coulam clarified sewer hook-up at each RV site; use of a generator is prohibited. Three trees along boundaries clustered every 30 feet. Do we still want one tree at each site? The 10% open space includes landscape buffer areas, but not recreational facilities. Commissioner Adel Murphy stated she thinks we said not to have them, because the tree on the site might get in the way. Commissioner Lance Anderson stated trees hide the RV tops. Maybe one tree if they are small. Dale Coulam stated that the applicant suggested they intend to do 40 x 80 sites, which is larger than what is required by the Virgin ordinance. It addresses attached awnings, slides, pop outs, etc. Those are considered part of the RV. There was concern about just listing prohibitions so he made those into subparagraphs. No accessories that give the appearance of permanence. No fuel tanks; no open storage of personal property. Commissioner Mike Scott stated that one item is whether we should define minimum duties for the on-site manager? Is that micro-managing, or do we stay out of that? Dale **Coulam** stated we could state some general things, that they need to be responsive to complaints and keep things in good repair. Commissioner Mike Scott stated another item is in other cases we have required a row of single family. Should we require that from the commercial. Commissioner Lance Anderson stated we encouraged it by reducing the setback to 20 feet if they put the cabins there. Items #11 and #13 were notes from the Fire Department and street requirements. Dale Coulam stated Randy Hancey was not at the last TRC so we do not have his response yet. Commissioner Mike Scott stated Item #15 included the 6 sites for equestrian. Jon Graf stated they are located on the Pendleton side; the Southwest corner. Commissioner Adel Murphy stated we need to remember this is for all applications. Dale Coulam so we would require it to the rear of the project, or the interior? Commissioner Lance Anderson stated it could say they must allow trails to the exterior. **Commissioner Mike Scott** stated regarding tent sites, what are the maximum amount of sites? Commissioner Bryan Pack stated that 10% could be tents. Commissioner Mike Scott stated or 10 tent spaces. Commissioner Lance Anderson stated we want them to have power, water, and a tree. Commissioner Mike Scott stated close to a 400 sq feet tent pad. That's 1600 sq feet with car parking. Jon Graf stated they will be in random places where they can fit a site. Commissioner Adel Murphy stated if tents are placed against Hwy 91 then it may not look like an RV Resort. Commissioner Lance Anderson stated we don't want to design it for them, but it needs to make sense because of the noise and the aesthetics. Commissioner Mike Scott stated we want the applicant to be able to read this

ordinance and know what to design. Item #2 he commented that if we have 30 foot buffers on Hwy 91, that adds up to a little over 8% of the total site as buffer area. If we include it as part of the total of open space, that leaves less than 2% open space within the site. Commissioner Bryan Pack stated but we were okay with that, because the sites are bigger. Commissioner Lance Anderson stated that we decided the open space in the pad was important. Commissioner Adel Murphy stated if they are 40 feet wide with 15 feet between, they will not be row upon row upon row of RVs. The Virgin one is really tight in there. The spaces will be 40 x 80 and 15 feet. Commissioner Lance Anderson stated that is in between structures. Dale **Coulam** stated that we have it written between sites. This is out of Virgin's ordinance, but they gave credit for open space for recreational buildings and we don't. We excluded that from the calculation. Their sites are an area not less than 1000 sq feet and average width of at least 30 feet and an average depth of at least 55 feet. RVs are trailers separated by each other by 20 feet. Commissioner Mike Scott stated from a safety standpoint it should be 20 feet. He explained that on the spreadsheet density analysis, if the gross site is 24.5 acres with about 4 acres that is unusable, and the buffer area is 8.3% of open space, they need 1.7% to get up to 10%. He estimated 15% roads; 10% clubhouse, pool, store, etc. On that basis if the minimum site size is 3200 sq feet, a developer would be able to fit 184 sites on that parcel. So suggested density would be 7.5 sites per gross usable acre. It has everything that we talked about that we want. We define density as a maximum. The amount of unusable space is unclear, so 7.5 sites per gross the total acreage. If they have less that's usable they won't be able to get 184 sites. Commissioner Lance Anderson stated that we are encouraging them to put more recreational facilities in there. Commissioner Mike Scott stated that RVs should not be stored or serviced at the resort. Carports, firepits, hot tubs are not permitted. Dale Coulam stated we will check with Randy Hancey on road size and firepits. Commissioner Adel Murphy stated that most campers have their own grill. Chairman Jeff Loris stated we prohibited fuel containers but we will allow a barbecue grill. It says it's prohibited. Commissioner Mike Scott stated that for designated storage, what type of things that would include, like toy haulers, dollies, motorized vehicles. We could say that storage area should gross no more 5% of the gross area of the resort. Storage is only allowed when the guest is registered occupant. They shall be fully screened. Should we cover height and location? Commissioner Lance Anderson stated this is referring to stuff they don't want at their site, this would be a separate RV storage area. Commissioner Mike Scott stated yes. The hours of activity or quiet periods. 10 pm to 6 am? Commissioner Adel Murphy stated that most campgrounds have quiet time hours. Commissioner Mike Scott inquired if there should be hours permitted for arrival and departure. Commissioner Lance Anderson stated the RV resort will define that themselves. **Commissioner Adel Murphy** stated they may have a late sign-in or maybe no reservation. You need to be able to come in after hours. Commissioner Lance Anderson stated we need to be protective of the neighbors for noise. Dale Coulam stated we could say 12 am for arrival. Commissioner Mike Scott stated no residents may operate a business. RV will not have abandoned vehicles. Traffic and turn-lanes on Highway 91. Dale Coulam stated that they will be required and they will be addressed. Commissioner Mike Scott inquired if we need to define standards for lighting for each site and vehicle as well as overall. Dale Coulam stated that he will review that. Commissioner Mike Scott stated that these are RV rental spaces only, not to be purchased. We need to define a minimum set of rules; sites kept free from trash or debris; maximum occupants limited to two persons does not seem reasonable. No outdoor sleeping other than the tent sites.

B. <u>Discuss and consider approval of the Ivins City Planning Commission minutes for April</u> <u>19, 2016.</u>

MOTION: Commissioner Adel Murphy moved to approve the Ivins City Planning Commission minutes for April 19, 2016.

SECOND: Commissioner Mike Scott

VOTE: The motion carried.

Commissioner Adel Murphy	AYE
Commissioner Lance Anderson	AYE
Commissioner Mike Scott	AYE
Commissioner Bryan Pack	AYE
Chairman Jeff Loris	AYE

- 6) **REPORTS**
- A. Planning Commission
- **B.** Chairman
- C. Building & Zoning Administrator, Kevin Rudd
- D. City Attorney, Dale Coulam
- E. Items to be placed on future agendas
- 7) ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Commissioner Lance Anderson moved to approve ADJOURNMENT SECOND: Commissioner Mike Scott

VOTE: The motion carried.

Commissioner Adel Murphy	AYE
Commissioner Lance Anderson	AYE
Commissioner Mike Scott	AYE
Commissioner Bryan Pack	AYE
Chairman Jeff Loris	AYE